
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

  Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/98472205489  Meeting ID: 984 7220 5489 
 

 
 
COUNCIL 
Deputy Mayor Liisa Wilder 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Deputy Mayor Liisa Wilder will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 26, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, October 26, 2020 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Public Hearing Minutes, September 28, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Public Hearing held September 28, 2020 be adopted. 
3.2 Regular Council Meeting, September 28, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 28, 2020 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
October 26, 2020 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/98472205489


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 26, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 26, 2020 regarding 

Chicken Keeping Policy  
Recommendation: 

 That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.  
5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 26, 2020 regarding 

By-Election for Vacant Belcarra Council Positions 
Recommendation: 

 That the report regarding a By-Election for Vacant Belcarra Council Positions 
 dated October 26, 2020, be received for information.   

 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
6.1 Deputy Mayor Liisa Wilder, Letter to Belcarra Residents dated October 23, 2020 
6.2 The following Council member appointments have been made effective until after 
 the election and Inaugural:  

• Deputy Mayor Wilder be appointed as Deputy Mayor.   
• Councillor Clark be confirmed as Municipal Director to the Metro Vancouver 
 Regional District Board of Directors. 
• Deputy Mayor Wilder be appointed to the TransLink Mayors’ Council  
• Deputy Mayor Wilder and Councillor Drake be authorized bank signing 
 officers for the Village of Belcarra 
• Deputy Mayor Wilder be appointed to the SVFD Board of Trustees; and 
• Councillor Clark be appointed to the SVFD Board of Trustees along with  
• Councillor Drake who will retain his appointment.  

6.3  Councillor Clark was appointed to the Metro Vancouver Water Committee by 
Metro Board Chair Dhaliwal. 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                   
 No. 572, 2020 – Keeping of Chickens 
 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                
 No. 572, 2020” be adopted. 
7.2 Village of Belcarra Fees & Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment                
 No. 570, 2020 (Pre-Application Rezoning Fee) 
 Recommendation: 
 That “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 570, 2020” be adopted. 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 26, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.29 be received. 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 a) Corey Heavener, Provincial Director of Child Welfare, Client Relations Branch,     
Executive Operations, Ministry of Children & Family Development, email dated     
October 1, 2020 regarding Declaration of October 2020 as “Foster Family Month” 
in the Village of Belcarra 
Recommendation: 
That October 2020 be declared as “Foster Family Month” in the Village of Belcarra. 

b) Robert Simons, Community Board, Sasamat Outdoor Centre, email dated        
October 21, 2020 regarding Request for Letter of Support for the “Community 
Economic Recovery Infrastructure Program” Grant Application 

Recommendation: 
That Council provide the Sasamat Outdoor Centre with a Letter of Support for the 
“Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure Program” Grant Application. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Tom Zajac, President & Helena Michelis, Vice President, Coquitlam Search & 
 Rescue Society, letter dated September 18, 2020 regarding Thank You to Council 
 for the Opportunity to Make a Presentation and the Continued Support of the 
 Village 
8.3 Roger Quan, Director, Air Quality & Climate Change, Metro Vancouver, letter 
 dated September 23, 2020 regarding Caring for the Air 2020, Metro Vancouver’s 
 Report on Air Quality and Climate Change (full report available in the Village office) 
8.4 Peter Xotta, Vice President, Planning & Operations, Vancouver Fraser Port Authority, 
 letter dated September 30, 2020 regarding Gateway Transportation Collaboration 
 Forum Fall 2020 Engagement (full report available in the Village office)  
8.5 Sandi Saunier, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 25, 2020 regarding Parking 
8.6 Jillian Hull & Eric Broberg, Belcarra Residents, letter dated September 26, 2020 
 regarding Permit Parking in Belcarra 
8.7 Doug & Sue Brain, Belcarra Residents, letter dated September 26, 2020 regarding 
 Permit Parking  
8.8 Heidi Hass Gable, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 27, 2020 regarding 
 Midden Road Closure and Parking Limitations  
8.9 Kim & Lynda Alfreds, Belcarra Resident, submission dated September 27, 2020 
 regarding No Parking 
8.10 Lyndon Hanson, Heidi Hass Gable, Colin & Cherith Richardson, Diego Marchese,  
 Irene VanderSpek, John & Lavaun Willms, Kim & Lynda Alfreds, Deborah Struk,      
 Jim & Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 28, 2020 
 regarding Parking & Midden Road Closure 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 26, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.11 Dave & Julie Chamberlain, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 29, 2020 
 regarding Parking  
8.12 Bob Wilson & Tammie Letain, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 30, 2020 
 regarding Parking Restrictions and Permits 
8.13 The Hughes Family, Belcarra Residents, email dated October 5, 2020 regarding 
 Parking 
8.14 Ken Jillings, Gail Dowler, Brian Jillings, Debbie Jillings Hardin, Laurel Stewart, 
 Belcarra Residents, letter dated October 6, 2020 regarding Permit Parking in 
 Belcarra 
8.15 Kimberly & Mark Nonis, Belcarra Residents, email dated October 7, 2020 regarding 
 Parking By-Law in Belcarra 
8.16 John Snell, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 7, 2020 regarding Parking – 
 Pay Attention  
8.17 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 10, 2020 regarding 
 Subdivision Regulations 
8.18 Brenda Hogg, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 10, 2020 regarding No 
 Parking Restrictions  
8.19 Ralph Drew, Drew’s Wharfage Association, email dated October 12, 2020 regarding 
 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program – Proposed HEA Fees for Group Wharfage Societies 
8.20 Phil Winne, Swift Heron Society, email dated October 12, 2020 regarding Council 
 Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
8.21 Patty & Murray Neibel, Belcarra Residents, email dated October 12, 2020 regarding 
 Council Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
8.22 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 13, 2020 regarding Council 
 Meeting 13 October 2020 – Bedwell Bay / Wharf Issues 
8.23 Neil Belenkie, Former Mayor, email dated October 13, 2020 regarding Resignation 
8.24 Ruth & John Foster, Sticky Beaks Wharfage Society, email dated October 13, 2020
 regarding Opposed to Proposed Increase in HEA 
8.25 Brian & Carol Hirsch, Belcarra Residents, email dated October 13, 2020 regarding 
 Parking in Belcarra  
8.26 John Snell, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 14, 2020 regarding Don’t Screw 
 Group Wharf Members 
8.27 Gord Sadler & Tarja Halmekangas, Belcarra Residents, email dated October 20, 2020 
 regarding Parking Regulation  
8.28 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated October 20, 2020 regarding Parking in 
 Belcarra 
8.29 Rhonda Vanderfluit, Registrar, Youth Parliament of BC Alumni Society, email dated 
 October 19, 2020 regarding British Columbia Youth Parliament, 92nd Parliament (full 
 report available in the Village office) 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 26, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the October 26, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



  

  
 
Minutes of the Public Hearing for the Village of Belcarra, September 28, 2020, at the Municipal 
Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

  
 
Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark         
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
Others in Attendance 
Laura Beveridge, Pooni Group, Planning Consultant 
 
1. CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER 

Mayor Belenkie called the Public Hearing to order at 5:00 pm. 
Mayor Belenkie will read aloud the procedure for the Public Hearing as follows: 
“This Public Hearing is being held pursuant to Section 464 of the Local Government Act 
to consider and receive submissions regarding the proposed: 

A. Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) 

B. Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw          
No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) 

All persons present who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed 
bylaw will be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard, make representation, or to 
present a written submission respecting matters contained in the proposed bylaw. People 
who pre-registered and are on the Speakers List will speak first. Put your hand up on the 
Zoom Webinar to join the Speakers List during the Public Hearing. When called on, 
please state your full name and address for the record. 
Members of Council may, if they wish, ask questions of you following your presentation.  
The function of Council members during the Public Hearing is to listen to the views of the 
public.  It is not the function of Council at this time to debate the merits of the proposed 
bylaw. 
After the Public Hearing has concluded, Council may, without further notice, give 
whatever effect Council believes proper to the representations made. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
September 28, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES September 28, 2020 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Public Hearing Minutes.doc  

Your only opportunity to comment on the proposed bylaw will be during the Public 
Hearing as members of Council are not permitted to receive further submissions after the 
Hearing is closed. 
Everyone will be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard at this Hearing.  No one will 
be discouraged or prevented from making their views heard.   
Written submissions received during the Meeting will be available on the website, the day 
following the meeting, so that everyone may examine these documents. 
To maintain order and to ensure everyone has a reasonable opportunity to be heard, the 
following rules of procedure have been established: 

a. A Speakers’ List has been established.  If you wish to address the Public Hearing, 
please ensure that you place your name on the Speakers List. You may add your 
name to the list at any time by using the “raise hand” function on the Zoom 
webinar. If you are speaking from prepared remarks, please send a copy by email 
to the Chief Administrative Officer, ldysart@belcarra.ca  

b. Please commence your remarks by stating your name and address.  If you are 
speaking on behalf of some other person or organization, please also identify the 
name of that person or organization you are representing. 

c. Each speaker is requested to limit their remarks to no more than 5 minutes, (you 
will be timed), subject to putting up your hand to add your name to the Speakers 
List again. 

d. Your comments must be specifically related to the subject of the Bylaw and be 
directed to the Mayor and you must not obstruct the Public Hearing. It is 
requested that all speakers be civil, respectful of others and ensure your 
comments address the specific issue being considered.  

e. After everyone on the Speakers List has spoken once, speakers will be allowed 
one supplementary presentation if they have added their name to the list again. 
You may not present a submission you have already made. 

Please observe these rules and if you have any concerns with the manner in which the 
Public Hearing is conducted, please direct your comments to Mayor Belenkie”. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING 
A. Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, 

Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) 
i.  Public Hearing Notice – appeared on September 17 and September 24, 2020   

editions of the Tri–City News newspaper 
ii.  Report September 14, 2020 to Council from the Chief Administrative Officer  
  establishing the date for a Public Hearing regarding Village of Belcarra Official  
  Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020      
  & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land  
  Disposition (Road Ends) 

iii.  Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011,  
  Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 

iv.  Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 

Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, advised that the Public Hearing Notice appeared 
in the Tri-City News newspaper and noted the dates the ad appeared in accordance with 
Section 466 of the Local Government Act. 
 

mailto:ldysart@belcarra.ca


PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES September 28, 2020 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Public Hearing Minutes.doc  

L. Dysart advised that 106 pieces of correspondence were received in response to the 
proposed bylaw amendment and the responses were made available to the public. Other 
municipalities and agencies were contacted and no response was received. 
L. Beveridge outlined the amendment bylaws which would create a mechanism that 
would enable Council to proceed with the sale of Road End properties, less than 0.5 acres 
in size, in the Village. 
Mayor Belenkie called speakers from the Public Hearing Speakers List to address 
Council. 
Dave Goodman, 5163 Whiskey Cove Lane, outlined concerns regarding the following:  

• Restrictions on use of revenue from waterfront road ends  
• Treatment of adjacent property owners to Road End properties being considered 
• Clarity on minimum lot size and Village surplus lands 
• The bylaw amendments are only provided for Village owned lots as opposed to all 

lots in the Village. 
Councillor Drake queried with respect to rezoning Village owned lots differently than 
those owned by residents.  
Dave Goodman noted that the Official Community Plan currently sets out the concept 
that the sale of property be limited to not less than 0.5 acre lots.   
Mayor Belenkie called for further Public Input three separate times. 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
Seconded by:  Councillor Begg 
That all written and verbal submissions regarding Village of Belcarra Official Community 
Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw 
No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) up to 
and including September 28, 2020, be received. 

      CARRIED 
B. Village of Belcarra Official Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw    

No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) 
i. Public Hearing Notice – appeared on September 17 and September 24, 2020 in the    
 Tri–City News newspaper 

ii. Report September 14, 2020 to Council from the Chief Administrative Officer 
 establishing the date for a Public Hearing regarding Village of Belcarra Zoning 
 Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) 

iii. Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 
 

Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, advised that the Public Hearing Notice appeared 
in the Tri-City News newspaper and noted the dates the ad appeared in accordance with 
Section 466 of the Local Government Act. 
L. Dysart advised that no pieces of correspondence were received in response to the 
proposed bylaw amendment.  
L. Beveridge outlined the bylaw amendment and noted that the policy will be presented 
at a future Council meeting if the bylaw is approved.  

 



PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES September 28, 2020 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Public Hearing Minutes.doc  

Mayor Belenkie called for further Public Input three separate times. No one came 
forward to provide comments. 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 
That all written and verbal submissions regarding Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw       
No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) up to and 
including September 28, 2020, be received. 

CARRIED 

3. ADJOURNMENT OR CLOSURE 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
Seconded by:  Councillor Clark 
That the Public Hearing regarding:  

A. Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, 
Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends); and  

B. Village of Belcarra Official Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw  
No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) 

be closed. 
CARRIED 

 
Noted: Members of Council are not permitted to receive further submissions once the 

Public Hearing is closed. 
 

The Public Hearing terminated at 5:19 pm. 
 
 
Certified correct: 
 

 
 
 

    
Liisa Wilder 
Deputy Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held September 28, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark  
Councillor Bruce Drake  
Councillor Liisa Wilder  
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 
Others in Attendance 
Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering & Land Services Ltd. (departed at 9:00 pm) 
Richard White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant (departed at 7:35 pm) 
Laura Beveridge, Pooni Group, Planning Consultant (departed at 9:41 pm) 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 28, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, September 28, 2020 be approved as 

circulated. 
 CARRIED  

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
3.1 Public Hearing Minutes, September 14, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

That the minutes from the Public Hearing held September 14, 2020 be adopted. 
 CARRIED 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 September 28, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.2



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 2 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

3.2 Regular Council Meeting, September 14, 2020 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 

 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 14, 2020 be 

adopted. 
 CARRIED 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Tom Zajac, President & Helena Michelis, Vice President, Coquitlam Search & 
 Rescue (SAR), presentation regarding Search & Rescue Services to the Community 
 and a request for financial support  
 Tom Zajac provided a PowerPoint presentation highlighting Coquitlam SAR history,
 engagement in the community, their team of volunteers, training and equipment. He 
 noted that Coquitlam SAR is a non-profit, volunteer run organization which relies on the 
 generous support of the community. 
 Mayor Belenkie thanked Coquitlam SAR for their presentation and their work on behalf 
 of the community. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That a Council representative be appointed as a liaison to Coquitlam Search & Rescue 
 (SAR); and  
 That the Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR) request for a donation be considered in 
 2021 Budget discussions. 

 CARRIED 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 28, 2020 
 regarding Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment — UBCM  
 Housing Needs Reports Grant Program 
 Richard White outlined the report noting the Housing Needs Assessment is a 
 requirement of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing.  
 Discussion ensued. R. White noted that Housing Needs Assessments may involve 
 other municipalities with similar interests which would be beneficial to Belcarra. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) be advised that the 
preparation of a Village of Belcarra Housing Needs Assessment Report is planned; and  
That the Village will be responsible for overall project management; and 
That Staff be directed to apply to the UBCM pursuant to the requirements of the BC 
Housing Needs Reports Program for a grant to offset the costs of the subject report. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 3 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 28, 2020 regarding 
 Parking and Bylaw Enforcement  

L. Dysart provided an update on Parking and Bylaw Enforcement as it has evolved over 
the past few months.  Letters are included on the agenda related to parking. Any further 
correspondence received will be included in the next agenda. 

 Council discussed various aspects of the report. It was noted that a Public Information 
 Meeting is proposed for October 21, 2020. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the Parking and Bylaw Enforcement report dated September 28, 2020, be 
 received for information; and 
 That a Public Information Meeting be held via Zoom on Wednesday, October 21, 2020; 
 and 
 That all related parking correspondence received be considered at the Public 
 Information Meeting.  

CARRIED 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 28, 2020 regarding 
 Current Staff Project List 
 L. Dysart outlined the report noting that an update will be provided periodically to 

illustrate the staff workplan. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the Current Staff Project List report dated September 28, 2020, regarding Current 
 Staff Projects be received for information. 

CARRIED 

5.4 Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 
 September 28, 2020 regarding Tatlow Seismic Switch 
 S. Novak outlined the purpose of the Seismic Valve and history of use of the valve.  
 Council discussion ensued with regard to the Water Operators and system processes. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the Tatlow Seismic Switch report dated September 28, 2020 be received for 
 information; and 
 That the options presented in the report be considered. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 4 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
6.1 Councillor Drake, report dated September 28, 2020 regarding Monitored Fire Alarms 
 Councillor Drake outlined the proposal to ensure widespread use of monitored Smoke    

and Fire alarms in Belcarra in order to reduce the risk of death or injury as well as the 
spread of fires.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That Council the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated September 28, 2020 be received for 

information; and 
 That further development of the concept be recommended. 

CARRIED 

6.2 Councillor Begg, motion regarding Parking Signs 
 Councillor Begg outlined the report and motion with regard to parking.  
 Discussion ensued.  
 The motion was amended by removing “as established by Bylaw Enforcement staff” prior 

to consideration. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That ‘No parking’ signs be installed in designated areas where there is a safety 
concern; and                       
That Restricted parking be permitted as requested by property owners within the 
extension of their property lines (on their property side of the road); and 
That property owners to pay for signage which may read, as an example:  

• ‘Parking only for the residents of …. Bedwell Bay Rd’: and  
That signs will be removed, as requested by property owners, who do not wish any 
parking restrictions within their property line extension area. 

DEFEATED 
Mayor Belenkie, Councillors Clark, Drake  

and Wilder voted in opposition 

 COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
6.3 Ian Devlin, Chair, Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee, letter dated 

September 23, 2020 regarding Technical Brief #1 
 Ian Devlin, Chair, Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee outlined the 

letter, Technical Brief #1, to Council regarding the Annual 2019 Water Report. 
 Considerable discussion ensued related to the letter with regard to: 

• Actuated altitude valve at the Tatlow Reservoir 
• Seismic valve at the Tatlow Reservoir 
• The Drinking Water Annual Report indicates leakage in the distribution line 

 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 5 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

Chris Boit, ISL Engineering & Land Services Ltd., provided an overview on leaks that 
occur in water systems and provided examples of other municipalities and the difficulty 
of detecting leaks. He advised that he discussed potential water flow scenarios with the 
District of North Vancouver.  A report to Council will be provided outlining various water 
flow scenarios. 
S. Novak outlined the role of Water Operators and the legal requirements of that 
position.  An annual meeting will be arranged with Fraser Health to discuss the 2019 
Annual Water Report.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the letter from the Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee dated 

September 23, 2020 regarding Technical Brief #1 be received for information. 
CARRIED 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) 
 Council discussion ensued with regard to various aspects of the Land Disposition 
 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020” be read a third time and adopted. 

DEFEATED 
Councillors Clark, Drake and Wilder voted in opposition 

7.2 Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020        
 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020”    
 be read a third time and adopted. 

DEFEATED 
Councillors Clark, Drake and Wilder voted in opposition 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 6 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

7.3 Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020        
 – Keeping of Chickens 
 L. Beveridge outlined the bylaw amendment and noted that a Policy will be brought to 
 Council regarding the Keeping of Chickens. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020”    
 be read a third time and adopted. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.27 be received. 

CARRIED 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Kailah Knittle, Manager of Communications & Events, Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation, 
 letter dated August 20, 2020 regarding Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation (ERHF) 2020 
 Online Auction and Raffle Donation Request 
 It was noted that due to COVID-19 restrictions, a cash donation would be made to the 
 Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That Council approve a $300.00 donation to the Eagle Ridge Hospital Foundation. 

CARRIED 

8.2 Agnes Jackman, Board Member, Council of Senior Citizens Organizations of BC, 
 letter dated September 2, 2020 regarding Observation of the UN International Day of 
 Older Persons – October 1, 2020 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That October 1, 2020 be declared as “UN International Day of Older Persons” in the 
 Village of Belcarra. 

CARRIED 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Jay Chalke, Ombudsperson, Province of British Columbia, letter dated           
 August 28, 2020 regarding Quarterly Reports: January 1 – March 31, 2020 and      
 April 1 – June 30, 2020 (full report available at the Village office) 
8.4 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated September 11, 2020
 regarding Climate & Energy UBCM Resolutions Endorsed by Metro Vancouver 
 Member Jurisdictions (full report available at the Village office) 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 7 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.5 Jerry Muir, Community Relations Manager, Lower Mainland, BC Hydro, email dated 
 September 12, 2020 regarding Beautification Fund & Decorative Wrap Grant Program 
8.6 John McEwen, Mayor, Village of Anmore, letter dated September 14, 2020 to 
 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Board of Trustees, Belcarra Council & CAO, 
 Anmore Council & CAO, Fire Chief Jay Sharpe, SVFD and Greg Smith, Metro 
 Vancouver regarding SVFD Board of Trustees 
8.7 Neil Belenkie, Mayor, Village of Belcarra, letter dated September 17, 2020 to 
 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department Board of Trustees, Belcarra Council & CAO, 
 Anmore Council & CAO, Fire Chief Jay Sharpe, SVFD and Greg Smith, Metro 
 Vancouver regarding Response to Mayor McEwen’s Letter 
8.8 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated September 15, 2020  
 to Honourable John Horgan, MLA, Premier of British Columbia regarding Universal 
 Access to No-cost Prescription Contraception  
8.9 Steven Kozuki, Executive Director, Forest Enhancement Society of BC, letter dated 
 September 15, 2020 regarding Forest Enhancement Society of BC’s 2020 
 Accomplishments Report (full report available in the Village office) 
8.10 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  

August 13, 2020 
Councillor Begg noted an amendment to the main motion on page 3 of the Sasamat 
Volunteer Fire Department Trustees Meeting Minutes of August 13, 2020. Discussion 
ensued with regard to the possible impact on the Village over the next period of time. 

8.11 John Snell, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 17, 2020 regarding Separation 
 Buffer Between Residential Properties 
8.12 Klaus Bever, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 17, 2020 regarding Letter 
 from the Mayor – this date  
8.13 Larry & Cecily Baptist, Belcarra Residents, letter dated September 18, 2020 regarding 
 Parking Restrictions in Belcarra 
8.14 Cathy MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 18, 2020 regarding Parking 
 Restrictions in Belcarra 
8.15 Gordon Sadler & Tarja Helmekangas, Belcarra Residents, letter dated September 18, 2020 
 regarding Current Parking Regulations  
8.16 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 18, 2020 regarding 
 Parking Issues, Midden Road Closure and Unsafe Cycling to Belcarra 
8.17 John Snell, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 18, 2020 regarding Exercise 
 Caution If You Dare to Enter Our Village…Hostile Residents 
8.18 Philip Winne, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 18, 2020 regarding Town    
 Hall Meeting – Parking  
8.19 Ian MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 19, 2020 regarding Parking     
 in Belcarra 
8.20 Adrienne Peacock & Des Wilson, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 20, 2020 
 regarding Parking 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 8 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.21 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 21, 2020 regarding Parking 
 Restrictions in the Village of Belcarra 
8.22 Jol Drake, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 22, 2020 regarding Permit Only 
 Parking  
8.23 Kevin Ferris, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 22, 2020 regarding Visitor 
 Parking 
8.24 John Willms, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 22, 2020 regarding Parking 
8.25 Corinna Goodman, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 22, 2020 regarding 
 Belcarra Parking 
8.26 Joel Johnston, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 24, 2020 regarding Parking           
 in Belcarra 
8.27 Daryle & Gai Anderson, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 25, 2020 regarding 
 Parking 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 John Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the cost to residents for 
 a water system upgrade as an alternative to the land disposition. 
 Dave Goodman, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to:  

• Parliamentary procedure related to Council voting on motions  
• The Village procedure to deal with late correspondence received 

 David Shoolestani, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to parking issues on Marine 
 Avenue 
 Don Babineau, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to: 

• Council members having a perceived conflict of interest 
• Encroachments in the Village 

 Peter Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to a mechanism for residents to 
 resolve differences of opinion on staff decisions.   
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the September 28, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:13 pm. 

CARRIED      
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 28, 2020 

Page 9 of 9 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

 
 

   

Liisa Wilder 
Deputy Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: October 26, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Keeping Chickens Policy  
 
 
Recommendation  
That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.  
Purpose 
To present the Village of Belcarra Chicken Keeping Policy. 
To amend the Fees and Charges Bylaw to cover costs associated with the registration 
of keeping chickens and violation of the chicken keeping regulations. 
 
Background 
Further to Council discussion at the September 14, 2020 Council Meeting and the Council 
motion at the September 28, 2020 Council Meeting, this report presents the Village of Belcarra 
Chicken Keeping Policy for Council review and comment. 
 
The rationale for referring to the Chicken Keeping Policy, as opposed to including all the 
information in the Zoning Bylaw, is to allow for more detailed information and regulations to be 
contained within single document that staff and the public can reference. Additionally, this 
allows for the Policy to be updated from time to time, without having to amend the Zoning 
Bylaw.  
 
In recent years, many municipalities have encouraged residents to get involved in their own food 
production by allowing backyard chickens to be kept on single family lots.  
 
The current Zoning Bylaw does not stipulate whether backyard chickens are permitted. 
However, residents have expressed an interest in keeping backyard chickens. Staff support 
allowing residents to keep chickens in order to produce eggs for personal consumption.  
 
There are important knowledge and skills necessary to provide care for chickens. According to 
the BC SPCA guide for backyard chickens, these include: 

• The ability to recognize common symptoms of health problems in chickens 
• The ability to humanely euthanize a chicken, or access to someone who can  

(e.g. a poultry veterinarian) 
• Finding a knowledgeable hen sitter when you leave town 
• Having at least two hens so your hen is not lonely 
• Having access to suitable nutrition and veterinary care in your community 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
October 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.docx 

• Knowing what to do with hens who have stopped laying eggs  
• Knowing how to protect hens from predators  
• Knowing how to dispose of chicken wastes, feathers that have been shed, and carcasses  

 
Source: https://spca.bc.ca/news/backyard-chickens/ 
 
Policy in Other Jurisdictions 
In Metro Vancouver, several municipalities allow the keeping of chickens. Below is a summary 
of chicken-related regulations. Please note this is not an exhaustive list but is intended to provide 
a general snapshot of how other municipalities are approaching this issue. 
 
Municipality Permitted General Rules & Restrictions  
Delta Yes • Up to 12 chickens 

• Minimum lot size 1 acre 
Vancouver 
 

Yes • Permitted in single- and multi-family residential 
zones 

• Maximum of 4 hens, 4 months or older, per lot 
• Backyard slaughtering not permitted 
• Eggs, meat and manure cannot be sold for 

commercial purposes 
• Regulations for enclosure size (min. 0.37 m2 coop 

space and 0.92 m2 enclosed run space per hen) 
• Hens must be registered with the city  

North Vancouver 
(City) 
 

Yes • Only residents in Single Unit Residential zoned 
dwellings can have chickens  

• Maximum 8 hens permitted 
• No roosters allowed 
• No sale of eggs or slaughter of chickens permitted 
• Residents must follow Urban Chicken Guidelines 
• Proper and secure pen and coop construction 
• No permits or registration required 

North Vancouver 
(District) 

Yes • Minimum 2, maximum of 6 chickens  
• Minimum lot size 557 m2   

West Vancouver Yes • Up to 6 chickens with 1 hen enclosure per lot 
• All single-family zones 

Richmond Yes • Minimum lot size ½ acre 
Surrey Yes • Up to 4 hens for lots under 1 acre 

• Up to 12 chickens/acre for lots from 1- 5 acres 
Township of Langley No N/A 
Burnaby No N/A 
Coquitlam No N/A 
Port Coquitlam No N/A 
Port Moody No N/A 

 
 

https://spca.bc.ca/news/backyard-chickens/


Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
October 26, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.docx 

Potential Concerns 
There may be concerns related to the keeping of chickens. According to research of other 
municipalities, concerns were raised related to public health and the keeping of chickens. The 
City of Vancouver completed an analysis on real and perceived public health concerns during the 
creation of their keeping of hens regulations. They found that the overall risk of pathogen 
transmission is low and does not pose a great threat to the public. 
 
At the September 14, 2020 Council Meeting and the September 28, 2020 Public Hearing, the 
issue of waste run-off from chicken feces and its impact on streams was raised by Council.  
According to staff research, chickens can carry various bacteria, including salmonella, that is 
shed through their droppings into the environment. The bacteria can be spread to humans if 
proper hygiene and handling practices are not followed. This risk is comparable to other 
domestic pet waste. For example, dogs and cat waste can also contain harmful bacteria and 
parasites that can contribute to stormwater pollution.  
None of the other municipalities that were reviewed have regulations that require a chicken coop 
to be setback from watercourses.  Considerations to address potential run-off from waste include 
enforcing proper disposal of waste. Further, chicken coops should be located in areas where they 
will not be inundated by seasonal run-off or heavy precipitation and leach into ditches, lakes, 
streams, or wetlands.  
Other potential concerns include nuisance (such as noise and odour) and wildlife (such as the 
attraction of bears, coyotes, etc.). The Chicken Keeping Policy, which is discussed below, seeks 
to address these concerns through the regulation of the total permitted number of chickens, 
permission for hens only (no roosters), and regulations related to chicken enclosures (location, 
size, etc.). 
Chicken Keeping Policy 
Based on Council input and research from other municipalities, staff is proposing the following 
considerations for the Chicken Keeping Policy (refer to Attachment A for Chicken Keeping 
Policy): 
 
Consideration Rationale 
Register with Village: all owners must 
register their chickens with the Village prior 
to bringing them to their property and pay the 
registration fee as per the Fees & Charges 
Bylaw (as amended from time to time). 
Additionally, a schematic of the enclosure 
must be submitted to staff at the time of 
registration. 

To allow the Village to track the number of 
chickens that are being kept on residential 
properties and to ensure the animals have 
sufficient room to roam.  
 
Refer to Attachment A for the Village of 
Belcarra Chicken Keeping Registration Form. 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
October 26, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.docx 

Register with A BC Premises ID (BCPID): 
all chicken owners must register their animals 
with BCPID 

A BC Premises ID (BC PID) is a free code 
assigned by the Ministry of Agriculture to 
property owners who intend to keep livestock 
or poultry in the Province. The form can be 
completed online or sent via email / regular 
mail. A BC PID allows the province to notify 
owners of the potential spread or threat of 
disease. 

Permitted on residential property: chickens 
may be kept on all residential properties in the 
Village of Belcarra. 

Belcarra consists of single family residential 
properties. According to research of other 
municipalities, chickens may be kept on single 
family residential properties. 

Minimum & maximum: a minimum 2 of two 
hens and a maximum of 6 hens are permitted. 

Research has shown that hens can become 
lonely if they are kept on their own, which is 
why a minimum of 2 is proposed. A maximum 
number of 6 is proposed to allow for sufficient 
egg production for families of 4 or more 
people. 

Roosters: roosters are prohibited Roosters are noisy and can be a nuisance to 
neighbours. In the spirit of neighbourliness, 
roosters are prohibited. 

Produce & by-product: eggs, meat, or 
manure cannot be used for commercial 
purposes 

The purpose of keeping chickens is for 
personal use and consumption. Additionally, 
produce and by-products cannot be regulated, 
so for public health and safety reasons, their 
commercial use is prohibited. 

Slaughtering: slaughtering of chickens on 
property is not allowed 

For public health and safety reasons personal 
slaughtering is prohibited. 

Chicken Coop and Run – Size & Design: the 
enclosure must provide a minimum of 0.37 m2 
coop space and 0.92 m2 enclosed run space per 
hen. The enclosure must provide adequate 
protection for the chickens. 

To ensure chickens have adequate room to 
roam. 
 
To ensure the Village can determine size and 
design requirements have been met. 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
October 26, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.docx 

Chicken Coop and Run – Location:  
every building (Coop) or enclosure used to 
accommodate chickens must be:  
• located within the rear yard of the lot 

behind a dwelling;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a 

dwelling;  
• a minimum 1.2 meters (3.0 feet) from any 

lot line;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a 

flanking street. 
 
Owners must identify where the chicken coop 
and run will be located on their property at the 
time of registration. 

To ensure chickens are kept in the backyard 
area and are far enough from neighbours and 
the road to mitigate impact on surrounding 
properties. 

Chicken Coop and Run – Requirements: 
each hen must be kept in the enclosure at all 
times; the enclosure must be secured from 
sunset to sunrise. 

To protect chickens from predators and to 
prevent them from running away or on to 
neighbouring properties. 

Contact for complaints: the Policy includes 
a Village contact for complaints related to the 
keeping of chickens. 

To ensure that individuals are following the 
Policy and to mitigate community or health 
concerns related to the keeping of chickens. 

Waste disposal and run-off: the Policy 
requires that coops be located in areas where 
they will not be inundated by seasonal run-off 
or heavy precipitation and leach into ditches, 
lakes, streams or wetlands. 
 
The Policy also requires that every owner of a 
chicken coop ensure that the area is clean, 
sanitized, free of vermin, and that all 
excrement is removed at least once a day. 
 
The Policy requires that manure not be 
deposited in the municipal sewage or storm 
drain system, or compost manure in such a 
way to allow manure to enter the municipal 
sewage or storm drain system. Manure should 
be kept for on-site compost or appropriate 
removal and disposal is the responsibility of 
the resident at the expense of the resident. 
 

To protect water contamination caused by 
chicken waste from stormwater run-off. 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report on Keeping Chickens 
October 26, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.docx 

Detecting and preventing disease: owners of 
backyard chickens must follow the Canadian 
Food Inspection Agency’s biosecurity 
guidelines. 

Diseases such as highly pathogenic avian 
influenza can cause birds to become ill and 
could lead to death. The biosecurity guidelines 
are required to be followed in most 
municipalities to prevent disease from 
spreading. The guidelines can be found here: 
https://www.inspection.gc.ca/animal-
health/terrestrial-animals/diseases/bird-health-
basics/eng/1323643634523/1323644740109  

 
Proposed Fee and Charges Bylaw Updates Associated with Keeping Chickens 
Subject to Council direction on the Chicken Keeping Policy, staff is recommending updates to 
the Fees and Charges Bylaw.  
At the September 14, 2020 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to amend the Keeping of 
Chicken Registration Fee to $50.  
 
Staff is recommending the following amendments to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees: 

Keeping of Chickens Registration Fee $50 
Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
1st offence  

$200 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
2nd offence  

$400 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
3rd offence or subsequent offence  

$600 

 
The purpose of these fees is to capture costs associated with staff time related to processing 
Keeping of Chickens registrations. Additionally, fines are proposed for those who violate the 
Chicken Keeping Policy. For example, people who keep too many hens, people who keep 
roosters, etc. 
 
 
Attachment 
A: Village of Belcarra Chicken Keeping Policy 
 

https://www.inspection.gc.ca/animal-health/terrestrial-animals/diseases/bird-health-basics/eng/1323643634523/1323644740109
https://www.inspection.gc.ca/animal-health/terrestrial-animals/diseases/bird-health-basics/eng/1323643634523/1323644740109
https://www.inspection.gc.ca/animal-health/terrestrial-animals/diseases/bird-health-basics/eng/1323643634523/1323644740109


ATTACHMENT A 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Chicken Keeping Policy - Attach A.docx 

 

  
 

 
Title: Chicken Keeping Policy  
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY:    DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 
 
Purpose 
• This Policy is intended to provide guidance regarding the keeping of chickens.  
 
Policy 
 
1. General Policies 

 
1.1. A minimum of 2 hens up to a maximum of 6 hens are permitted on all residential lots. 
1.2. Roosters are not permitted. 
1.3. Eggs, meat, or manure cannot be used for commercial purposes. 
1.4. Slaughtering of chickens on property is not allowed. 
1.5. Biosecurity procedures recommended by the Canadian Food Inspection Agency must 

be followed.  
 
2. Registration 

 
2.1. All owners must register their chickens with the Village prior to bringing them to their 

property (Refer to Attachment A – Registration Form). 
2.2. All owners must pay a registration fee per the Fees & Charges Bylaw (as amended 

from time to time). 
2.3. A schematic of the enclosure must be submitted to staff at the time of registration. 
2.4. All chicken owners must register their animals with BC Premises ID (BCPID)  

 
3. Chicken Enclosure, Coop and Run 

 
3.1. The enclosure must provide a minimum of 0.37 m2 coop space and 0.92 m2 enclosed run 

space per hen. The enclosure must provide adequate protection for the chickens. 
 

3.2. Every building (coop) or enclosure used to accommodate chickens must be:  
• located within the rear yard of the lot behind a dwelling;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a dwelling;  
• a minimum 1.2 meters (3.0 feet) from any lot line;  
• a minimum 3.0 meters (9.8 feet) from a flanking street. 
• Coops should be located in areas where they will not be inundated by seasonal run-

off or heavy precipitation and leach into ditches, lakes, streams, or wetlands. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Corporate Policy No. 215 

Chicken Keeping Policy  



Corporate Policy No. 215 
Chicken Keeping Policy 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Chicken Keeping 
Policy - Attach A.docx 

 
3.3. Owners must identify where the chicken coop and run will be located on their property 

at the time of registration. 
 

3.4. Each hen must be kept in the enclosure at all times; the enclosure must be secured from 
sunset to sunrise. 

 
3.5. Every owner of a chicken coop must ensure that the area is clean, sanitized, free of 

vermin, and that all excrement is removed at least once a day. 
 

3.6. Manure must not be deposited in the municipal sewage or storm drain system, or 
compost manure in such a way to allow manure to enter the municipal sewage or storm 
drain system. Manure should be kept for on-site compost or appropriate removal and 
disposal is the responsibility of the resident at the expense of the resident. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Corporate Policy No. 215 
Chicken Keeping Policy 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Chicken Keeping 
Policy - Attach A.docx 

 
Attachment 1 

Village of Belcarra  
Chicken Keeping Registration Form  

 
Hen Owner 
 

 
Property Zoning 
 
Please put a checkmark next to the zoning for your property where you will be keeping chickens: 
 
 RS-1 (One-Family Residential Zone) 
 RM-1 (Duplex or One or Two-House Zone) 
 RM-2 (Farrer Cove South Zone) 
 RM-3 (Duplex or Four-House Zone) 

 
BCPID 
 
BCPID #  

(9 digit B.C. Premises Registration # for a Poultry Premises provided by Ministry of Agriculture) 
 
# of Hens to be kept on the lot 
 
# of hens  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Name:   

Last Name:   

Address:   

Postal Code:  

Phone Number:  

Email:  

Date:   



Corporate Policy No. 215 
Chicken Keeping Policy 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 Chicken Keeping 
Policy - Attach A.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
Chicken Coop Enclosure 
 
A schematic of your chicken coop is required to be included with the registration form. 
Have you included a schematic of the chicken coop? (Check yes or no) 
 
 Yes   
 No 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 I have included the registration fee as per the Fees & Charges Bylaw (as amended from 

time to time). 
 

 I confirm that I reside on the above property and/or have written consent from the owner 
of the above property to keep chickens. 
 

 I confirm that I have read and understand the Chicken Keeping Policy and will comply 
with the policy. 

 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 L. Dysart - By-Election for 
Vacant Belcarra Council Positions.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: October 26, 2020  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: By-Election for Vacant Belcarra Council Positions 
 
 
Recommendations 
That the report regarding a By-Election for Vacant Belcarra Council Positions dated          
October 26, 2020, be received for information.   
 
Purpose 
Councillor Begg resigned as a Belcarra Council Member on September 30, 2020 and Mayor 
Belenkie resigned on October 13, 2020.  The purpose of this report is to provide information     
to Council and any interested members of the public regarding a by-election for these vacant 
positions.   
 
Background  
Under normal circumstances, municipalities are obliged by law to appoint a Chief Election 
Officer (CEO) as soon as practicable after a vacancy occurs in a municipal Council.  This 
appointment starts a number of deadlines for the execution of an election.  Of particular interest, 
once appointed, the CEO must set the date for general voting for a Saturday no later than 80 days 
after they were appointed.   
This year, because of the complications arising from COVID-19, a Ministerial Order is required 
from the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing.  I have reached out to the staff in the 
Governance and Structure branch for assistance in moving forward.  A contact has been provided 
by Elections BC to work with the CEO for the election.  
Staff are currently reviewing existing rules, budgets and past practices for elections, and 
reconciling these matters with relevant orders from the Provincial Health Officer to ensure that 
the Village adheres to best practices respecting COVID-19.  This review includes examination of 
the capacity for the Village to have mail in ballots and to confirm the layout of the voting station.   
To summarize, the execution of the election remains a critical task for Village staff.  Staff are 
currently performing work necessary to ensure that the difficult balance with respect to 
accountability, transparency and public health is maintained.  This work is to ensure that the 
Village is prepared once further guidance is provided by the Province.   
Upon execution, there will be many relevant sections and regulations of the Local Government 
Act and the Community Charter to consider.  
The Village of Belcarra “Election Procedures Bylaw No. 515, 2018” offers additional guidance 
respecting the conduct of elections.   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: By-Election for Vacant Belcarra Council Positions 
October 26, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\2020 10 26 L. Dysart - By-Election for Vacant Belcarra 
Council Positions.docx 

The budget for the 2018 Election was approximately $28,000. It is expected that the budget for 
the by-election will be similar to that amount.  There will be extra costs related to COVID – 
physical barriers, sanitizing materials, masks, more spacing for staff, etc. plus any increased 
costs for printing ballots, mail in ballots, advertising, etc. need to be considered.   
The Council appointment of a Chief Election Officer will take place as soon as possible.  There 
is a specific timeline required for a by-election.  Notification will be provided when the required 
timeline for the by-election is established.   
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.1



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\Bylaw 572, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 
517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw - Chickens.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following language to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees: 

Keeping of Chickens Registration Fee $50 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
1st offence  

$200 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
2nd offence  

$400 

Violation of the Chicken Keeping Policy – 
3rd offence or subsequent offence  

$600 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Read a Second Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Read a Third Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 

  
Liisa Wilder 
Deputy Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 10 26\Bylaw 570, 2020 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 
2018 Pre-Application Fee.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges 
Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By adding the following language to Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and Development 
Services: 

Pre-Application Fee for Review of Large 
Rezoning Applications 

$500 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without 
the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Read a Second Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Read a Third Time on September 14, 2020 
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Liisa Wilder 
Deputy Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  
Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1a)



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1b)



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.17









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.18



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.19



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.20



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.21



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.22



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.23



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.24



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.25



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.26



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.27



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.28



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.29


	That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.
	3.1 2020 09 28 Public Hearing Minutes.pdf
	“This Public Hearing is being held pursuant to Section 464 of the Local Government Act to consider and receive submissions regarding the proposed:
	A. Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends)
	B. Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw          No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens)
	A. Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends)
	Moved by:  Councillor Wilder
	Seconded by:  Councillor Begg
	That all written and verbal submissions regarding Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 569, 2020 & Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 568, 2020 – Land Disposition (Road Ends) up to and...
	CARRIED
	B. Village of Belcarra Official Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw    No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens)
	Moved by:  Councillor Clark
	Seconded by:  Councillor Drake
	That all written and verbal submissions regarding Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw       No. 510, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 571, 2020 (Keeping of Chickens) up to and including September 28, 2020, be received.
	CARRIED
	Moved by:  Councillor Wilder
	Seconded by:  Councillor Clark
	Certified correct:

	3.2 2020 09 28 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 28, 2020  regarding Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment — UBCM   Housing Needs Reports Grant Program
	Richard White outlined the report noting the Housing Needs Assessment is a  requirement of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing.
	Discussion ensued. R. White noted that Housing Needs Assessments may involve  other municipalities with similar interests which would be beneficial to Belcarra.
	That the Current Staff Project List report dated September 28, 2020, regarding Current  Staff Projects be received for information.
	That the Tatlow Seismic Switch report dated September 28, 2020 be received for  information; and
	That the options presented in the report be considered.
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	7. BYLAWS
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2020 10 26 - L. Dysart  Keeping of Chickens.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: October 26, 2020
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Keeping Chickens Policy
	That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.
	The rationale for referring to the Chicken Keeping Policy, as opposed to including all the information in the Zoning Bylaw, is to allow for more detailed information and regulations to be contained within single document that staff and the public can ...
	Staff is recommending the following amendments to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	The purpose of these fees is to capture costs associated with staff time related to processing Keeping of Chickens registrations. Additionally, fines are proposed for those who violate the Chicken Keeping Policy. For example, people who keep too many ...
	Attachment
	A: Village of Belcarra Chicken Keeping Policy
	2020 10 26 Chicken Keeping Policy - Attach A.pdf
	Title: Chicken Keeping Policy
	Attachment 1


	7.1 Bylaw 572, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw - Chickens.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Second Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Third Time on September 14, 2020
	Adopted by the Council on

	7.1 Bylaw 572, 2020 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw - Chickens.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 572, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Schedule 12 – Animal Control Fees:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Second Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Third Time on September 14, 2020
	Adopted by the Council on

	7.2 Bylaw 570, 2020 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Pre-Application Fee.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 570, 2020”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By adding the following language to Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and Development Services:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Second Time on September 14, 2020
	Read a Third Time on September 14, 2020
	Adopted by the Council on

	2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.

	2020 10 26 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	That Corporate Policy No. 215 “Chickens Keeping Policy” be adopted.




